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Rebekah Giles 
Company (Giles) 

By email: rebekah@companygiles.com.au 

Dear Ms Giles 

OpenAustralia Foundation - Senator Andrew Bragg 

We act for OpenAustralia Foundation (OAF) and Matthew Landauer.  We have your letter of 7 March 
2022.  It is addressed to Mr Landauer but appears to be threatening litigation against OAF.  It would 
be helpful if you could clarify who exactly it is that your client is threatening to sue. 

Your letter is extremely detailed, but not to any useful end.  Your client has no cause of action.  
Without accepting any of the contentions in paragraphs 3 to 37 of your letter, we can dispose of your 
FOLHQW¶V�DOOHJDWLRQV�LQ�EULHI�WHUPV� 

The sole cause of action identified in your letter is misleading or deceptive conduct, under section 18 
RI�WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�&RQVXPHU�/DZ���$V�\RX�DUH�DZDUH��FRQGXFW�FDQ�RQO\�LQIULQJH�VHFWLRQ����LI�LW�LV�³LQ�
WUDGH�RU�FRPPHUFH´���1RQH�RI�2$)¶V�FRQGXFW�DERXW�ZKLFK�\RXU�FOLHQW�FRPSODLQV is in trade or 
commerce. 

7KH�EDVLV�RI�\RXU�DUJXPHQW�WR�WKH�FRQWUDU\�LV�LQ�SDUDJUDSK������<RX�DVVHUW�WKDW�2$)�KDV�³DFWLYLWLHV�LQ�
WUDGH�RU�FRPPHUFH´�DQG�DSSHDU�WR�DVVHUW�IXUWKHU�WKDW�FRQGXFW�ZLOO�EH�LQ�WUDGH�RU�FRPPHUFH�³HYHQ�LI�D�
charity seeks donations or PRQH\�RQO\��LH�ZLWKRXW�VXSSO\LQJ�D�JRRG�RU�VHUYLFH�´� 

That is incorrect.  The authorities are very clear regarding the scope of conduct which falls within 
section 18, consistently following the principle laid down by the High Court in Concrete Constructions 
(NSW) Pty Ltd v Nelson (1990) 169 CLR 594 (see paragraphs 602-604, 613-614). 

Of particular pertinence is this passage in $/',�)RRGV�3W\�/WG�Y�7UDQVSRUW�:RUNHUV¶�8QLRQ�RI�$XVWUDOLD 
(2020) 282 FCR 174 at [52]: 

³$�QXPEHU�RI�FDVHV�FRQVLGHUHG�ZKHWKHU�UHSUHVHntations in the nature of political, social or 
consumer advocacy are made in trade or commerce. If the advocacy is political or educational 
in nature and the advocate, or those whose interests the advocate represents, are not 
themselves involved in trade oU�FRPPHUFH��WKH�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV�DUH�XQOLNHO\�WR�EH�µLQ�WUDGH�RU�
FRPPHUFH¶��VHH�IRU�H[DPSOH�Tobacco Institute of Australia v Woodward (1993) 32 NSWLR 
559; Orion Pet Products at [192]-[193] (Weinberg J). Even if a corporation that is engaged in 
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trade or commerce engages in political and public advocacy relating to regulations that may 
affect its business, the advocacy may not constitute conduct in trade or commerce: Village 
Building Co Ltd v Canberra International Airport Pty Ltd (2004) 139 FCR 330 at [51]-[59] 
�)UHQFK��6DFNYLOOH�DQG�&RQWL�--��´ 

OAF does not engage in trade or commerce.  To the extent that it accepts donations, that is not a 
trading or commercial activity.  As the authorities demonstrate, even if it was found to have trading or 
commercial activities, there is no connection between such activities and the conduct complained of.  
The conduct does not even reach the level of political advocacy, let alone trade or commerce; it 
involves the provision of tools and information to the public to support democratic engagement. 

If it was seriously argued that section 18 extends to conduct of this kind, then that provision to that 
extent would be invalid, as it would infringe the implied constitutional freedom of communication on 
government and political matters. 

We expect that your client knows all of this already.  The fact that he has elected to make an empty 
threat of litigation to our client is interesting, but it has no legal consequence. 

2$)�LV�FDUHIXOO\�FRQVLGHULQJ�WKH�VXEVWDQFH�RI�\RXU�FOLHQW¶V�FRPSlaints and will happily make changes 
WR�LWV�ZHEVLWH�LI�LW�FRQFOXGHV�WKDW�DQ\�RI�WKRVH�FRPSODLQWV�KDYH�PHULW���2$)¶V�VROH�LQWHUHVW�LV�LQ�
participating in our democracy and providing useful tools to Australian citizens as they participate 
likewise. 

Finally, our clients do not accede to your assertion of confidentiality over your letter.  You cannot 
unilaterally impose confidentiality or non-publication obligations on a third party to whom you have 
sent unsolicited correspondence.  

Yours sincerely 

Michael Bradley 
Managing Partner 
 

 

 


